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          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will now move

          3  to the second portion of today's hearing, and this

          4  area covers, this section covers the Department of

          5  Buildings. And we see seated, or soon to be seated

          6  Commissioner Silva, who we have learned will soon be

          7  leaving the Department, so Commissioner, this is to

          8  be your last appearance.

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: It is, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How long have

         12  you been Commissioner?

         13                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I have been

         14  Buildings Commissioner for two and a half years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Two and a half

         16  years, and during that two and a half years I want

         17  to say that this Committee has enjoyed a good

         18  working relationship with you and your Department,

         19  particularly I will mention the fact, it was not

         20  difficult to get you on the phone, you didn't have

         21  to go through the usual bureaucratic shuffle, you

         22  know, in conference, out to lunch, on the phone,

         23  gone for the day, you know, just the whole menu of

         24  divergence that separates a working politician from

         25  where he wants to go and the results that he wants
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          2  to get. You know, you facilitated the work of this

          3  Committee and I think you helped the City.

          4                 I can particularly remember when we

          5  went over to the collapsed building, or the

          6  collapsed scaffold, how you took time to make this

          7  Committee aware of all of the detailed and complex

          8  issues involved in that disaster, and that is just

          9  one example of your cooperative and forthright

         10  attitude. At least that is my opinion, okay?

         11                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That having been

         14  said, we are here with Council Member Nelson,

         15  currently at the table, and others who are in and

         16  out, we will be happy to share your view of this

         17  year's, of the Fiscal Year 2000 Executive Budget.

         18                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Would you

         19  introduce those persons with you? It would be

         20  helpful.

         21                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you,

         22  chairman, and members. With me today, to my right,

         23  your left, is Barry Cox, Deputy Commissioner for

         24  Operations. To my left, your right, is Patricia

         25  Ketterer, Assistant Commissioner for Administration.
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          2                 Thank you for providing me the

          3  opportunity to speak to you about the Fiscal Year

          4  2000 Executive Budget for the Department of

          5  Buildings and the status of a few ongoing programs.

          6                 The Mayor and his Administration are

          7  committed to ensuring public safety and have such

          8  have strongly supported our Department in its

          9  initiatives.

         10                 The Fiscal Year 2000 Executive Plan

         11  presented by the Mayor allocates $40.7 million in

         12  Expense funds, of which $30.7 million is for

         13  Personal Services, and $10 million is for Other Than

         14  Personal Services.

         15                 The budgeted headcount is 715

         16  positions. The Fiscal Year 2000 Preliminary Budget,

         17  providing funding for the following programs:

         18                 - $550,000 for microfilming of

         19  documents.

         20                 - $281,000 in City Council funding

         21  for the restoration of Fiscal Year '99's facade and

         22  central enforcement initiatives.

         23                 - $840,000 for collective bargaining

         24  salary adjustments.

         25                 - $52,000 for additional lease costs.
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          2                 In the Executive Budget, $1.1 million

          3  was added for the change from a 35 hour to a 40 hour

          4  work week for inspectors.

          5                 In addition, the Fiscal Year 2000

          6  Executive Budget includes 331,000, this is a

          7  correction, in funding, for four hoist and rigging

          8  inspectors, three ECB hearing representatives and

          9  one enforcement support person.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How many

         11  thousand?

         12                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Three-hundred

         13  thirty-one thousand, as opposed to the 180 in the

         14  statement, that was a typographical error.

         15                 The increase for hoist and rigging

         16  inspectors is due to three major factors, the

         17  implementation of Local Law 11 of '98, the new

         18  facade law, new rules related to responsibilities

         19  and qualifications of licensed riggers and sign

         20  hangers, and the continuing boom in the building

         21  industry.

         22                 The increase in enforcement positions

         23  is necessary to respond to the workload increase. As

         24  the Department continues its proactive enforcement

         25  initiatives, the number of violations issued by the
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          2  inspectors continue to increase. Adjudication of

          3  each contested ECB violation requires the physical

          4  presence of a hearing representative. The workload

          5  has more than doubled from the first half of '97 to

          6  the first half of 1998, from 10,039 hearings to

          7  26,256 hearings. The number of appeals has risen

          8  from 95 to 339, a 256 percent increase. The ECB

          9  hearing representatives are no longer able to handle

         10  all of the cases on the days scheduled. As a result,

         11  some cases are adjourned solely because of staff

         12  shortages and some uncontested cases are handled

         13  without a hearing representative present.

         14                 Additional enforcement staff will

         15  help to reduce any backlog and stabilize the unit's

         16  workload.

         17                 Also added was $93,000 for the

         18  emergency response team upgrade of field equipment

         19  and restoration of $3.2 million to the lease budget

         20  in order to pay rent at 60 Hudson Street until the

         21  renovation of 280 Broadway is completed.

         22                 The Department has not been able to

         23  hire and retain elevator inspectors of the current

         24  salary rate. The budgeted headcount for the elevator

         25  inspection unit is 57, and the current --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            8

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Excuse me,

          3  Commissioner. 280 Broadway, that is a City-owned

          4  building, right?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, you won't be

          7  paying rent there.

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: When we move in,

          9  eventually.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         11                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: The Department

         12  has not been able to hire and retain elevator

         13  inspectors for the current salaried rate. The

         14  budgeted headcount for the elevator inspection unit

         15  is 57 and the current elevator and inspector

         16  headcount, 37.

         17                 In order to maintain public safety

         18  and to meet our inspection mandate, the Department

         19  will continue contracts with private elevator

         20  inspection companies, until the elevator vacancies

         21  are reduced.

         22                 $1.6 million has been provided for

         23  six months funding of these contracts.

         24                 I would now like to take the

         25  opportunity to briefly discuss with you the status
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          2  of various ongoing initiatives outlined in my

          3  preliminary budget testimony. I will also update you

          4  on several other ongoing enforcement initiatives

          5  that have been conducted with existing staff.

          6                 The current financial plan included

          7  funding for a centralized special enforcement unit,

          8  a facade inspection and audit unit, an expansion of

          9  the unlicensed plumbing task force.

         10                 The centralized special enforcement

         11  unit is targeting persistent violators, high profile

         12  offenders and other special cases where the

         13  Department's existing enforcement mechanisms have

         14  not achieved compliance.

         15                 The unit is auditing and analyzing

         16  the Department's existing enforcement mechanisms and

         17  will propose organizational regulatory, legislative

         18  and other changes to enhance the effectiveness of

         19  those mechanisms in obtaining compliance with the

         20  building code and zoning resolution.

         21                 The Department continues to devise

         22  and implement a comprehensive enforcement strategy

         23  utilizing all available resources.

         24                 In October of 1998, the Department

         25  created a new unit to inspect building facades and
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          2  audit Local Law 10 of 1980 reports. Pivotal to our

          3  enforcement efforts was the passage of Local Law 11

          4  of '98. In December of 1998, the Department started

          5  inspections of buildings and those that filed

          6  precautionary reports in the last two filing

          7  periods, which is an indication there may be safety

          8  issues.

          9                 As of March 1999, there has been a

         10  total of 188 inspections, resulting in the issuance

         11  of 26 hazardous violations. The unit will continue

         12  to conduct audit inspections based on reports

         13  received and look for patterns of structural

         14  problems and abuse of the process.

         15                 A new task force within the

         16  Department's Investigation's Audits and Discipline

         17  Unit, IAD, focuses exclusively on identifying and

         18  prosecuting unlicensed practitioners for doing work

         19  which requires a licensed master plumber.

         20                 New initiatives for the task force

         21  include performing sting operations, neighborhood

         22  sweeps and locating repeat offenders.

         23                 Since its creation a few months ago,

         24  the task force has issued 64 summonses and collected

         25  $15,300 in penalties.
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          2                 Complaints to the Department's

          3  illegal plumbing work hot line are responded to by

          4  seven construction inspectors for the Building

          5  Enforcement Safety Team or BEST Squad. Since the hot

          6  line was established in 1996, inspectors responded

          7  to 959 complaints received directly from the hot

          8  line, most within 24 hours, and issued over 500

          9  violations.

         10                 In addition to these new operational

         11  strategies, the Department continues to focus on

         12  quality of life initiatives, including enforcement

         13  against illegal adult establishments, illegal

         14  signage, illegal conversions of one and two-family

         15  homes and school inspections.

         16                 In July 1998, the Mayor launched an

         17  adult use task force to shut down establishments

         18  that were in violation of a new adult zoning

         19  resolution text. Using existing staff, the

         20  Department inspected approximately 148 adult use

         21  establishments. As of March 1999, 48 establishments

         22  have either been closed, no longer engage in this

         23  form of business or are complying with the new text.

         24                 Currently the Department Adult Use

         25  Task Force is performing additional inspections of
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          2  the establishment still open, in order to assure

          3  they operate legally or gather further evidence for

          4  cases pending in court.

          5                 In October 1998, the Department

          6  started a training program for about 20 construction

          7  inspectors to better prepare them to respond

          8  expeditiously to signed complaints from the City

          9  Council, community boards, civic groups, Business

         10  Improvement Districts and by the general public.

         11                 The actual inspections began in

         12  January of 1999 and as of April 1999, our inspectors

         13  have issued over 290 signed violations and 70

         14  summonses.

         15                 We have also conducted training

         16  sessions for the community boards and civic groups

         17  on the zoning resolution and the building code

         18  signed provisions, to assist them in making valid

         19  complaints.

         20                 In January 1999, the Department

         21  created a new team of inspectors to perform annual

         22  inspections of approximately 1,440 City public

         23  school buildings.

         24                 These inspections evaluate the site

         25  conditions, the interior and exterior of the
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          2  buildings and an overall assessment of a structural

          3  integrity of each school. Particular attention is

          4  give to facades, cornices and masonry that may be

          5  loose or show signs of deterioration.

          6                 As of March 1999, the team has

          7  performed 795 inspections of City-owned schools, and

          8  issued 789 violations.

          9                 The Department continues to

         10  aggressively address the problem of illegally

         11  converted dwelling units in Queens, and is actively

         12  inspecting and responding to some complaints in the

         13  communities.

         14                 Currently there are 18 inspectors

         15  assigned to the unit. Since its inception, the

         16  Department has received approximately 18,000 illegal

         17  conversion complaints. Our quality of life team

         18  performed over 20,000 field visits, issued over

         19  11,000 violations, and issued over 186 vacate

         20  orders. The Department will expand a task force to

         21  Brooklyn in the very near future.

         22                 In addition to our focus on proactive

         23  enforcement, the Department has several initiatives

         24  to enhance customer service. The Department plans to

         25  purchase a queuing system in each of our borough
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          2  offices, develop a centralized call center for

          3  complaints, install information kiosks and expand

          4  the interactive Voice Response System.

          5                 We will continue to update you on

          6  these initiatives and improvements in the coming

          7  months.

          8                 Thank you for your time. I appreciate

          9  your continuing support for the Department's

         10  programs and welcome any questions you may have at

         11  this time.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well,

         13  Commissioner, I first again want to express my

         14  appreciation for your years of cooperation. I don't

         15  know who is going to succeed you, but let's hope it

         16  is in the same style of collegiality and openness.

         17                 As it relates to that 35 hour or 40

         18  hour change for your work week for your inspectors,

         19  is that a straight five-hour, whatever that

         20  percentage represents of 35, times the dollar, times

         21  the wage?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes. Basically

         23  the inspectors now work a 40-hour week, as opposed

         24  to a 35-hour week, and that is the differential.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do they get time
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          2  and a half for that additional hours?

          3                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: No, no.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: That is straight

          6  time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          8                 Now, you made mention that we

          9  recognize the inability to attract and retain

         10  inspectors, elevator inspectors particularly, I

         11  guess all, given what the salary opportunities are

         12  for certified journeyman, licensed positions, you

         13  want to expand now. The Department has not been able

         14  to hire and retain elevator -- how are we responding

         15  to that reality?

         16                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Well, as I

         17  mentioned in my statement, the initial response

         18  obviously is to meet our mandated requirements we

         19  enter into contracts with the private sector, to

         20  have them provide elevator inspection services to

         21  augment our staff.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Which we pay

         23  more money for.

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: We don't lose

         25  money.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It doesn't cost

          3  additional money? So maybe then we ought to

          4  privatize everything, Mr. Corso, right?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SILVA: Mr. Chairman, I

          6  believe we pay them $54 and we collect $65, so we do

          7  not lose money in the proposition.

          8                 The reality is, Mr. Chairman, that

          9  the increase in the wages for inspectors has been

         10  terrific across the Board in every other type of

         11  inspector position that we have, it has increased

         12  productivity, it has helped us recruit new and

         13  better inspectors through the Department.

         14                 The one exception is the Elevator

         15  Division and it is simply the economics outside and

         16  what these folks with the same qualifications can

         17  get in the private sector, as opposed to what we can

         18  afford to pay in the public sector.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         20  Warden, you have a question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Yes, a couple

         22  of questions.

         23                 Congratulations or condolences, I

         24  don't know which one is appropriate.

         25                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: But good luck.

          3                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Your adult use

          5  task force that is in place to comply with the new

          6  zoning regulations, is it a requirement that the

          7  establishment be operating? In other words, when one

          8  files the plans to get a C of O, they should state

          9  what they are going to be doing; is that correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes. When

         11  applications are filed with the Department of

         12  Buildings, the application of the drawings have to

         13  explicitly state what it is they are doing.

         14                 We have had a number of instances

         15  where somebody files an application for an eating

         16  and drinking establishment, a bar, they get an

         17  approval, they build it, and we receive a complaint

         18  and we go out, and in fact they have an adult

         19  establishment, so we then enforce against that

         20  illegal use.

         21                 There have been a number of instances

         22  where people have opened adult establishments

         23  legally, where they have actually filed, they have

         24  shown the information on the application and on the

         25  drawings, they have demonstrated that they comply
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          2  with the zoning resolution and all of our other laws

          3  and they are allowed to do that in certain parts of

          4  the City. And that has happened too.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: What if

          6  somebody lies?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Well, we catch

          8  them and we take them to court.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: At what point

         10  do you catch them?

         11                 In other words, I have a situation in

         12  my district where we have one operator who is in

         13  adult entertainment and he filed his plans and

         14  disclosed what he is doing and that is fine.

         15                 And I have another person who is

         16  establishing an adult video store around the corner

         17  from where this guy who did it legally is doing, he

         18  had initially stated that he was doing retail work

         19  and we found out or find out that, no, it is an

         20  adult establishment. He is moving from one location

         21  where he was zoned out to this new location.

         22                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: And when we

         24  approached the Buildings Department on it, they tell

         25  us, well, we have to wait until he starts up the
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          2  business before we can close it. That doesn't make

          3  sense.

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Fair enough. If

          5  you are talking about the illegal condition, we have

          6  to see an illegal condition --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: But it is less

          8  than 500 feet from the other one.

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: But he is not

         10  doing anything yet.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: He is

         12  building.

         13                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: But he is

         14  building what?

         15                 He is saying he is building a retail

         16  outfit, we can't enforce against a potentially legal

         17  retail outfit. He is not illegal until he actually

         18  breaks the law, and he is going to break the law the

         19  moment he has an adult establishment operating.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: So then we do

         21  have to wait until he opens up before --

         22                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Although

         24  everybody knows what he is doing.

         25                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: If you let us
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          2  know what it is, we will be ready on that first day.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay.

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Okay?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Fair enough.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          7  Michels.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner,

          9  I am not going to let this day go by with telling

         10  you how sad I am to learn that you are leaving. You

         11  have been an extraordinary commissioner, and I don't

         12  say that to every commissioner. You have been very

         13  responsive, as we have said, and I think the City

         14  has benefitted greatly by your leadership and you

         15  have been very responsive and I think you have

         16  transformed the Department from a good Department to

         17  even a better Department and I am very proud to have

         18  been somebody who has seen what you have done. So, I

         19  am very pleased and I think you should go from here

         20  with a feeling of accomplishment.

         21                 That being said, you mentioned then

         22  that your Department performed some 795 inspections

         23  of City-owned schools and issued some 709

         24  violations. Does the Department plan to inspect all

         25  1,440 schools? Yes or no?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, the

          3  Department plans to inspect all 1,440 schools this

          4  year, and we will do it again next year and

          5  hereinafter.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, getting

          7  back to those 709 violations, can you give me an

          8  idea of how many of those are serious or hazardous?

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I don't have the

         10  breakdown with me, but I could get that for you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Would you

         12  please?

         13                 And what steps does your department

         14  take to ensure that these violations are remedied?

         15  Because if we don't find them, we have to make sure

         16  they are done.

         17                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: We are working

         18  very closely with the Board of Education, and we

         19  meet regularly with the Board of Education to go

         20  over each and every one of these violations. And

         21  this is now a procedure that has been established --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you find

         23  them responsive?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And by that I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2  mean, have they cleared up the violation?

          3                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: They cleared up

          4  the violation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They can

          6  answer your questions, but do they do the work?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Anything that is

          8  an immediate hazard they take care of immediately.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How do you

         10  define immediately?

         11                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: If it is

         12  imminent.

         13                 I mean, for example, if we go out to

         14  a school and we say there is a hazardous condition,

         15  you have to put up a sidewalk shed, they will put up

         16  a sidewalk shed and they will take care of the

         17  condition. That as you know is imminent, it has got

         18  to be done immediately.

         19                 There are other things that we look

         20  at. You know, there is an exit light that is not lit

         21  up, wide range of issues, they can do them over the

         22  course of the year.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But you make

         24  sure they are done?

         25                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You have a

          3  check-off or something?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: And there is

          5  constant feedback so we keep track of the violations

          6  we have issued and we keep track of the ones that

          7  they have taken care of.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And do you

          9  also get involved, say, for instance, if the school

         10  is an old school built before 1960 and we know there

         11  is possible paint that was used that was lead paint,

         12  do you do anything with respect to looking at

         13  possible lead paint problems in the buildings when

         14  the children are younger?

         15                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, I don't

         16  believe we do the lead paint, I think it is the

         17  Department of Health or DEP, I am not 100 percent

         18  sure.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, the

         20  Department of Health is only going to come in after

         21  they have come across a lead poisoned child, but

         22  when they do rehabilitation and they do other work,

         23  we make sure that there is protection, as far as

         24  possible lead paint?

         25                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I do not believe
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          2  it is within our jurisdiction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Will you try

          4  to find out whose jurisdiction it is?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because it is

          7  important. We are talking about young children,

          8  because there are children who are five years or

          9  younger who are known.

         10                 Now, what is your jurisdiction with

         11  respect to the School Construction Authority?

         12                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Well, the School

         13  Construction Authority has to comply with the laws

         14  of the City of New York, just like anybody else.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you treat

         16  them the same as anybody else, and you watch their

         17  construction practices?

         18                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, we inspect

         19  all of the school buildings, if we see them doing

         20  something that they shouldn't be doing, we treat

         21  them like anybody else.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And have you

         23  found generally, with respect to a private

         24  development builder, how do they -- what are their

         25   --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I think it has

          3  been getting a lot better.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Because it

          5  wasn't too good at one time.

          6                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Once upon a time

          7  it was not terribly good, and I think it has gotten

          8  a lot better and getting better all the time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But there are

         10  still problems?

         11                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Any construction

         12  program has inherently problems, it is the nature of

         13  the process unfortunately.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I want to

         15  know how they respond to those problems.

         16                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Exactly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you find

         18  they are being more responsive now than ever before?

         19                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. And you

         21  have your inspectors generally out there watching

         22  how they do with their equipment, their safety

         23  hazards and everything else?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Again, we are

         25  doing these cyclical inspections of all school
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          2  buildings, some of them are under construction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am talking

          4  about under the jurisdiction of the School

          5  Construction Authority. Do you watch things being

          6  built, making sure they are building it properly and

          7  their equipment is being --

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Well, in the

          9  context of doing all the school inspections we do

         10  the ones that they do as well, correct. We don't

         11  have a special sort of oversight role for school

         12  buildings that are under construction.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay. And

         14  once the building has been constructed, and before

         15  the children actually move in, do you some sort of

         16  an inspection to see to it that the building is

         17  safe?

         18                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: We do the C of O

         19  inspection.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the

         21  rehabilitated building, for instance, the same

         22  thing?

         23                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Were you

         25  involved in that issue or we were going to move some
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          2  children in our district in District 6, into the

          3  building, a former laundry, and they had this

          4  problem with the perk?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You were not

          7  involved. You are aware of it, about a year or two

          8  years ago?

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I remember

         10  hearing about it, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Children were

         12  moved in and they found the levels of perk were bad

         13  and they had to move them out.

         14                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Who would

         16  have jurisdiction over something like that?

         17                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: If I had to guess

         18  I would say DEP. The perk issue is sort of a merky

         19  area, but I believe --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you think

         21  you ought to assign jurisdiction of things like that

         22  to one agency or another so we know? Then it

         23  wouldn't be a question of which agency handles it.

         24  It seems to me there should be accountability and an

         25  agency should be in charge.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I mean, I think

          3  environmental issues are typically within the

          4  jurisdiction of the Department of Environmental

          5  Protection.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Only if they

          7  are called in. But generally speaking they don't

          8  have anything to do with school construction.

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: They have the

         10  same to do with any other construction in the City

         11  and any other hazardous materials throughout the

         12  City.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If they know

         14  it is hazardous material, but they don't do regular

         15  inspections of schools or school construction

         16  buildings, unless they know there is hazardous

         17  material in there. They are not one of those

         18  agencies that have to sign off on a C of O, are

         19  they?

         20                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: No, they are not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: All right.

         22                 And the C of O is a certificate which

         23  says that this particular building is ready for

         24  occupancy and it is safe to occupy.

         25                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: It does. But,
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          2  again, the C of O was issued whether the Department

          3  of Buildings deals with specific issues. There are

          4  other things it clearly doesn't deal with.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Such as?

          6                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Health issues,

          7  rodents, all kinds of things that we just don't

          8  enforce against. It isn't what we are looking for,

          9  it isn't what our guys are trained to do.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I understand.

         11  But there are other agencies that perhaps who should

         12  be signing off on those before we let children go in

         13  them other than the C of O, because those things you

         14  mentioned, especially things like gases or rodents

         15  and things like that, that building should not be

         16  occupied until that building is taken care of, don't

         17  you agree?

         18                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I would agree if

         19  it becomes a sort of a persistent problem.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes. I am not

         21  talking about a field mouse or something that

         22  happens to get into the building. I am talking about

         23  a problem with cockroaches, which now as you know

         24  cockroaches are exacerbating conditions in people

         25  with things like asthma and things like that,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            30

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2  children with asthma. We are dealing with a very

          3  vulnerable population, it seems to me that if you

          4  are going to have somebody assigned to that, I would

          5  really appreciate your getting back to me, or

          6  somebody in your agency, as to who and which agency

          7  should be doing this, which agency should be doing

          8  that. I think we should be looking into that.

          9                 If people see a C of O, they say,

         10  well, okay, my kid can go to school there is a C of

         11  O, but there may be other things in that building

         12  that is a problem, and we should know who is

         13  responsible and who we should get a sign-off. And

         14  may we should get a sign-off from other agencies and

         15  there is no problem with rodents or whatever it is.

         16  Those problems would be probably the Division of

         17  Pest Control in the Department of Health, and

         18  Hazardous Materials should be DEP, maybe we should

         19  have other agencies signing off on a building that

         20  has been rehabbed, don't you agree? Make it safe.

         21                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Let me answer the

         22  question.

         23                 I think every property owner in the

         24  City of New York has a responsibility for his or her

         25  property. The same thing applies to the Board of
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          2  Education, and there are things that are within the

          3  jurisdiction of my agency, there are things that are

          4  within the jurisdiction of DEP or the Department of

          5  Health, but ultimately the responsibility for these

          6  buildings is with the owner of the buildings.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right. You

          8  are absolutely correct. He is responsible for making

          9  sure the building is safe.

         10                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure. And I am

         11  not so sure we need a regulatory process to add more

         12  people into the mix, because ultimately it is going

         13  to make it more bureaucratic and ultimately cause

         14  more delays. I think it is important to have the

         15  Board of Ed understand that there are these other

         16  issues and for all I know they probably are aware of

         17  these things.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I don't care

         19  who is aware of it, as long as it is done --

         20                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the

         22  building is safe. Children should not have to go

         23  into a building and then have to be moved out

         24  because they find the building is unsafe and

         25  shouldn't have been moved in in the first place.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And if that

          4  requires DEP to go in there or DOS or the Department

          5  of Health, it should be done, and I think things

          6  fall between the cracks and we have too much of a

          7  problem with children on other situations, without

          8  having that kind of a problem, and the parents

          9  should know that when a kid goes into a school

         10  building, whether it be rehabbed or newly

         11  constructed, that it is safe in all aspects, not

         12  only the physical, which you are involved, but also

         13  the health point of view and also hazardous

         14  material.

         15                 So, I would appreciate it if somebody

         16  could get back to me on that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And thank you

         19  very much. I appreciate it. And God speed.

         20                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         22  Eristoff.

         23                 He is gone again.

         24                 Okay, Commissioner, let me ask you a

         25  quick question. As it relates to the legal
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          2  conversions, on page three, one, two, three, four,

          3  five paragraphs down, you said you received

          4  approximately 18,000 complaints and you performed 20

          5  field visits, that is two more visits than

          6  complaints. Does that mean the Department initiated

          7  some non-complaint-generated field visits?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: No. A lot of

          9  these visits are multiple visits at the same

         10  location.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. If nobody

         12  is home, you can't get -- okay.

         13                 Now, doing the math again, of the

         14  20,000 visits, there were 11,000 violations; what is

         15  the status of those violations? Because the

         16  violations, as I understand it, if not responded to

         17  turns into -- no, if not responded to and there are

         18  no subsequent follow-ups to determine whether the

         19  violations being corrected doesn't exist. Are these

         20  violations -- what is the current status of these

         21  18,000 violations?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: These 18,000

         23  violations are adjudicated at the Environmental

         24  Control Board.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Commissioner,
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          2  does that mean that these 18,000 -- the 11,000

          3  violations have been converted into 11,000 actions

          4  before the Environmental Control Board?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is what

          7  that means, okay.

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Fine, okay.

         10                 Because I know from experience that

         11  sometimes you get a violation that says discontinue

         12  the action, or the condition in a certain number of

         13  days, but if nobody comes back to determine whether

         14  the violation has been discontinued, you know, and

         15  that is not an unknown occurrence.

         16                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: For these types

         17  of violations the owner has a certified compliance.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So there are

         19  11,000 violations which converted into.

         20                 Okay, now, of the 11,000 violations,

         21  180, that is a dramatic drop, from 11,000

         22  violations, 186 vacate orders --

         23                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So we have gone

         25  now from 18 to 11 -- from 18,000 to 11,000 to 186. I
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          2  almost get dizzy just going down that fast. What

          3  does that mean? Can you give me some idea?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does that mean

          6  10,984 -- no. The difference between 11,000 and 186,

          7  is there any kind of history or records?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure. We only

          9  vacate properties when they are imminently

         10  dangerous. You could have an illegal condition,

         11  whether it is in adult establishments, in a

         12  commercial district, it can be an illegal commercial

         13  use in a residential district, it could be an

         14  illegal commercial use in a commercial district on

         15  and on, we issue violations. We typically only

         16  vacate when there is an imminent danger there. When

         17  there are overcrowded conditions, where there is

         18  only one means of egress, you have a wood frame

         19  structure with 30 people living in it. Those are the

         20  instances. You know, we go through the 11,000 and

         21  the ones that rise to the level of imminent danger

         22  are the ones we will vacate.

         23                 The vacating, you know, is a serious

         24  step. We are taking people, putting them out, the

         25  Red Cross comes, relocates them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, the other

          3  10,900 violations were resolved with some money

          4  fines.

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, typically it

          6  is a financial -- it's a fine, the Environmental

          7  Control Board, correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And if they

          9  don't pay the fine --

         10                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: The fines go up.

         11  You get caught again and you have to pay more money.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do they become

         13  186 or --

         14                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: No, no, no. You

         15  don't get vacated simply because you don't pay

         16  fines. You only get vacated if the house or the

         17  building is imminent danger.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, as long as I

         19  pay the fine the condition can continue to exist?

         20                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: As long as you

         21  pay the fine the condition can continue to exist,

         22  except the next time we catch you, and we will catch

         23  you, the fine is going to be significantly greater.

         24  Very significantly greater.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you feel that
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          2  there comes a point where the fine will extinguish

          3  the illegal activity just because of the economics

          4  of it?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It will no

          7  longer just be a cost of doing business.

          8                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: It becomes an

          9  economic disincentive, and very important to this

         10  process is part of what I spoke about earlier in my

         11  statement where we have this new enforcement unit

         12  whose job it is to identify persistent scofflaws,

         13  the people who have historically thumbed their nose

         14  at us and we are now identifying them and we are

         15  going after them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you have any

         17  records as to the history of these fines?

         18                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER:  Could you make

         20  them available to the Council of this Committee so

         21  that we can review them and get an idea how

         22  effective this method is?

         23                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         25  Commissioner, we don't have any other requests at
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          2  this time.

          3                 Council Member Eristoff.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you

          5  very much. I am sorry I wasn't available when you

          6  called my name previously.

          7                 Commissioner, let me just preface

          8  this by saying thank you personally and on behalf of

          9  my community for your excellent leadership of the

         10  agency, with the exception of one particular

         11  building permit, but we won't go into that today

         12  because this is in fact a budget hearing.

         13                 But let me just ask a few questions

         14  of you and perhaps your senior staff concerning some

         15  technology initiatives.

         16                 First, beginning with the Year 2000

         17  situation, could you bring me up to date on where

         18  you are and in particular how much you plan to spend

         19  in Fiscal 2000 to finish up the remediation of your

         20  BIS and other systems?

         21                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Are we talking

         22  about Year 2000 compliance?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Yes.

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: We are compliant.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: You are
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          2  compliant, so you have no more budgeted items for --

          3                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: We are done.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, great.

          5                 Did you in fact, as planned,

          6  implement your wide area network in Fiscal '99?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So you don't

          9  have any further expenditures for that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I think there is

         11  more equipment that we are buying, but we have the

         12  wide area network in place.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         14                 Is there any budgeted amount going

         15  forward?

         16                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I believe the

         17  capital money isn't completely spent yet, but we

         18  will finish spending it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         20                 So, that was 1.4 million?

         21                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: So you are

         23  going to roll over some now, okay.

         24                 The license and Marquis system, what

         25  is the status of that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: The system is in

          3  place. That was a one-time expense and it is in

          4  place.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. The

          6  housing management and sales imaging pilot program.

          7  This dates back a few years, but have you expanded

          8  it? Do you have any further plans?

          9                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: That system is

         10  not up. To be honest, I don't know what the status

         11  of that is but I can find out.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: I would

         13  appreciate your staff being able to get back.

         14                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: INFO DOB, my

         16  understanding is that this is going to cost about

         17  $200,000; is that correct? And what are you

         18  planning, if anything, to spend on it in the next

         19  fiscal year?

         20                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I think the

         21  numbers add up to $220,000.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: 220, but

         23  what about Fiscal 2000?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I believe there

         25  is still money left to be spent, we will get back to
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          2  you on the specific amount.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And then

          4  finally, the electronic filing system.

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: The electronic

          6  filing system, we still have money in the budget to

          7  finish expanding it.

          8                 One of the things about electronic

          9  filing, and this is a very key initiative of the

         10  department, is that we have done the initial round,

         11  that we had to put its expansion, or completion I

         12  should say, on hold until the Year 2000 remediation

         13  process was finished. Now that that remediation

         14  process is finished we have gone back to the PC

         15  filing application, and I believe it is going to be

         16  finished this summer. So, at some point this summer

         17  we will have PC filing for everything. We will have

         18  PC filings for the initial application, as well as

         19  for all subsequent amendments, which is exactly what

         20  we want, it is exactly what the industry wants.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And what

         22  have you budgeted for that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I believe it is

         24  already in the budget, we already have the money

         25  allocated for it.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Do you

          3  happen to know off-hand what that amount was?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I don't know, but

          5  again, we will get you that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And are

          7  there any other major technology initiatives on the

          8  horizon for which you are seeking fiscal 2000

          9  dollars?

         10                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: I believe we have

         11  a hand-held computer request.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: That is

         13  before the Technology Office?

         14                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: And you

         16  haven't heard yet? Those are usually vetted as they

         17  come in, right, on rolling admissions, if you will,

         18  so you might hear it sometime this summer?

         19                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Yes, hopefully.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay, you

         21  don't necessarily think of that in terms of fiscal

         22  year, that is just whenever they get around to

         23  looking at it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you
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          2  very much, Commissioner. Best of luck in your future

          3  pursuits.

          4                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you,

          5  Councilman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          7  Nelson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I have a very

          9  quick question.

         10                 The Department will expand a task

         11  force to Brooklyn in the near future, is there more

         12  of a ballpark or a guesstimate about when it might

         13  be?

         14                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: July.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Oh, terrific.

         16  All right, thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         20  Warden.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Yes, I have

         22  one more for you.

         23                 You are planning to move some time in

         24  the near or distant future to 20 Broadway, however,

         25  this move has been delayed and you are actually
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          2  budgeted 3.2 million in Fiscal Year 2000 and 1.9 in

          3  Fiscal Year 2001 for leasing private space. What is

          4  the problem with the move? Why is it delayed?

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: The Department of

          6  Administrative Services is handling the work on the

          7  building, so I can't answer for them.

          8                 I do know there is a fair amount of

          9  construction work that has to be done within the

         10  building to get it ready for us to move in. And I

         11  think the time frame that we are talking about is

         12  the amount of time necessary to do that construction

         13  work.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: That is the

         15  two-year period though, that's a long time.

         16                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Well, I have been

         17  in the building and it is an amazing amount of stuff

         18  that has to happen in there, the design hasn't been

         19  finished yet, so a fair amount of work still has to

         20  be done.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay,

         22  Commissioner, we wish you success in your future

         23  endeavors, whatever and wherever that takes you. It

         24  has been good working with you and your staff, Mr.

         25  Cox, Barry Cox, and Mr. Lenon in my particular case
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          2  in Queens, and if I didn't get what I felt was a

          3  good answer or appropriate answer I called you and

          4  you explained to me why I didn't get it.

          5                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Right.

          6                 Mr. Chairman, it has always been a

          7  pleasure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, good luck,

          9  and thank you. We look forward to working with all

         10  of you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER SILVA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 Thank you, Council members.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, that

         15  concludes this phase, and shortly we will begin with

         16  the New York City Housing Authority, just a brief

         17  recess.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 11:35 a.m.)

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            46

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of May 1999.
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         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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